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The undersigned Grantor declares; Pursosnt to 35 ILCS 200/31-45(e), the real
estate transfer tax is $0.00. This Quitclaim Deed i entered into pursuant to a court-
ordered conveyance or decree where the actual consideration is less than $100.00.

QUITCLAIM DEED

MIAO PARTNERS LLC, a Delaware limited liability <uinpany ("Grantor")
hereby remises, releases and quitclaims to Thomas W. McNamara as court-appointed
Receiver for TATTO, INC. pursuant to case number 2:13-cv-08912-DSF-FFMx pending
in the United States District Court for the Centra] District of California, whese 1nailing
address is Ballard Spahr LLP, 655 West Broadway, Suite 1600, San Diego, Caiifornia
92101, that certain real property (the "Land") located in the City of Chicago, Comiiy of
Cook, State of Illinois, more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto together
with all right, title and interest of Grantor in and to all buildings and improvements now
located or hereafter constructed on the Land.

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

\.
City of Chicago Real Estate
Dept. of Financa - i o Transfer
671424 ijdd % el Stamp
7/28/2014 12:54 : 4 $0.00
dr00752 " Batch 8,557 807

DMWEST #10952003 v1 y




kit e e

1420945078 Page: 2 of 28

UNOFFICIAL COPY

ll IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Quitclaim Deed as of July
, 2014,

DMWEST #10952083 v1

MIAO PARTNERS LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company

. M

Name: Lin Miao

Its:  Member

By: /74—;
Namer Kelly Miao

Its:  Member
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STATE OF | !él;&r\lé )

38,
COUNTY OF los Avayrlys, )

I, the Undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the state aforesaid, do
hereby certify that Lin Miao, in his capacity as Member for Miao Partners LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, is personally known or has been proven to me to be
the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before
me this day in person and acknowledge that he signed, sealed and delivered said

document-as his free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, on
behalf of Miso Partners LLC.,

PO
Given under my hand and notarial seal this 2 day of July, 2014,

Signature _ _v( [)/L ‘
N

STATE OF (‘ }\\G)mlb

\
: , D
COUNTY OF |05 A~ozles )

I, the Undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said “ounty, in the state aforesaid, do
hereby certify that Kelly Miao, in her capacity as Meraber for Miao Partners LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, is personally known or lias been proven to me to be
the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before
me this day in person and acknowledge that she signed, séaled and delivered said
document as her free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, on
behalf of Miao Partners LLC.

(O
Given under my hand and notarial seal thisz_é_ day of July, 2014.

Signat Seal
ignature __|__ (Seal)

{ o M. LAMORIE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF PREPARER: - A AR COMM. 2050528 2
Gary York -,‘_ ;:‘5' 2 WLC;ASYPUBUCCWJFOWIA b
Ballard Spahr LLP 0257 My o Expres Dec 25, 2017
2029 Century Park East
Suite 800

Los Angeles, CA 90067

DMWEST #10952993 v1
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EXHIBIT A
Description of Property
P.LN. #: 17-27-129-093-1022

ADDRESS: 327 E 25" Street, Unit #1W
Chicago, Illinois 60616 -

LEGAL PESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 1:

. UNIT 65-A TGGLTHER WITH ITS UNDIVIDED PERCENTAGE INTEREST IN THE

COMMON ELEMEMTS IN EASTGATE CONDOMINIUM AS DELINEATED AND
DEFINED IN THE DECLARATION RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 0722222004,
AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, IN THE WEST 1/2 OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, “KANGE 14, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TOGETHER WITH ALL EASEMENTS
AND OTHER RIGHTS WHICH MAY BE APPURTENANT THERETO,

PARCEL 2:

THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO THE USE OF P-15, AS LIMITED COMMON
ELEMENTS AS DELINEATED ON THE SURVEY ATTACHED TO THE
DECLARATION AFORESAID RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 0722222004,

DMWEST #10952993 v1
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

199

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, Case No, 2:13-cv-08912-DSF-FFMx
STIPULATED ORDER FOR
Plaintitt, PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AND MONETARY JUDGMENT
V. AGAINST DEFENDANTS

X TATTO, INC., SHABOOM
TATTO, INC., i 4l MEDIA, LL.C, BUNE, LLC,
MOBILE MED]A PRODUCTS
Defendants. LLC, CHAIRMAN VENTURES
LLC, GALACTIC MEDIA, LLC,
VIRTUS MEDIA, LLC, AND LIN
MIAQO

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commitsicn (“Commission” or “FTC”), filed its

| Complaint for Permanent Injunction and Othef Equitable Relief (“Complaint”) in
| this matter, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC
Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). The Commission and Defendarss Tatto, Inc., Shaboom
Media, LLC, Bune, LLC, Mobile Media Products, LLC, Chairman Ventures, LLC,
Galactic Media, LL.C, Virtus Media, LLC, and Lin Miao now stipulsie to the entry
of this Order for Permanent Injunction and Monetary Judgment (“Order”) to
resolve all matters in dispute in this action between them.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as follows:
| FINDINGS
1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter.
2. The Complaint charges that Defendants participated in deceptive and unfair
acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C, §45, ina

scheme to place unauthorized charges on consumers’ mobile phone bills, a practice
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known as “cramming.”

3. Settling Defendants, as defined below, neither admit nor deny any of the
allegations in the Complaint, except as specifically stated in this Order. Only for
purposes of this action, Settling Defendants admit the facts necessary to establish
jurisdiction.

4. Settling Defendants waive any claim that they may have under the Equal
Access todustice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution of this action
through the 2at2 of this Order, and a gree to bear their own costs and attorney fees.
5. This Orderrefects the negotiated agreement of the partics. The
Commission and the Setling Defendants have agreed that entry of this Qrder
settles and resolves all matters-of dispute between them arising from the conduct
alleged in the Commission’s Comnlaint as of the date of entry of this Order.

6. Settling Defendants and the Commission waive all rights to appeal or
otherwise challenge or contest the valiqity of this Order.

DEFINITICMS
For the purpose of this Order, the following Jefinitions apply:

I “Settling Corporate Defendants” means Tatto. Inz., also d/b/a
" WinBigBidLow and Tatto Media, Shaboom Media, LLC, Buie, LLC, Mobile
Media Products, LLC, Chairman Ventures, LLC, Galactic Media, LLC, Virtus
| Media, LLC, and their successors and assigns.
2. “Settling Individual Defendant” means Lin Miao.
3. “Defendants™ means all of the Defendants in this matter, individually,

collectively, or in any combination.

4. “Liquidator” meaps the Liquidator Receiver, Thomas W. McNamara.

|5, “Person” means any individual, group, unincorporated association, limited
or general partnership, corporation, or other business entity.
6.  “Preliminary Injunction” means the Preliminary Injunction entered on

January 6, 2014, as amended by the Order Granting Limited Relief From The

P00
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Asset Freeze entered on Jenuary 21, 2014,
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7. “Settling Defendants” means Seitling Corporate Defendants and Settling
Individual Defendant, individually, collectivel y, Or In any combination.
ORDER
I. BAN ON PLACING CHARGES ON TELEPHONE BILLS
[T IS ORDERED that Scttling [efendants are permanently restrained and
enjoined from bil'ing, subsmitting for killing, or assisting or facilitating the billing

or submitiing tor hilling. charges to any telephone bill, including but not limited to

OO0 1 SN Wy e W N =

a bill for any yvoice, text, or dala service.
IL.  INJUNCTION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS

i ITISFURTHER ORIERED that i connection with the advertising,

| marketing, promotion, ¢ffesing for sale, sale, or distribution of any product or

—
<

— e ped
b MY

service, Settling Defendants Seitling 1:fandants’ officers, agents, servants,

[a—y
=Y

-employees, and attornevs, and aii Gther persons in active concert or participation

with any of them, who receive actwal notice of this Order, whether acting directly

— —
N LA

or indirectly, ere permanently vestrained and enjoined from making, or assisting

—_
-~

| others m making, expresslv or by implicarion; any false or misleading material

[a—
o0

| representation, including representations concerming the-cost, performance,

p—
o

efficacy, nature, characteristics, benefits, or safety of atrv rroduct or service, or

b
<

concerning any consumer’s ohligation 16 pay for charges for aay nroduct or

I
P

| Service.
| III. INJUNCTION AGAINST UNFAIR BILLING PRACTICES

| ITISFURTHER ORDERED thet, in connection with the advertising,

[N N R
LS VS B

| marketing, promotion, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any product or
|
 service, Settling Defendant:, Settling Defendants’ officers, agents, servants,

[\ B
N

§ employees, and attorneys, and 21l other persors in active concert or participation

b2
~J

e with any of them, who recsive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly
|

;
!
|

r?

I
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or mdirectly, are permanently restrained and enjoined from causing any consumer
to be billed for any product or service without having previously obtained the

consumer’s express informed consent, and having created and maintained a record

i of such consent.
] IV. MONETARY JUDGMENT AND PARTIAL SUSPENSION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

p02

| A, Judgment in the amount of One Hundred F ifty Million, One Hundred Fifty
JThree Thousand. Two Hundred Eighty-Three Dollars ($150,153,283) is entered in ‘
favor of the Cominission against Settling Defendants, jointly and severally.
B.  Settling Defendants are ordered to pay to the Commission as follows:

1. Effective upon 2ic entry of this Order, Settling Defendants must

J surrender 1o the Commidsinn gll control, title, dominion, and interest in the
] following assets (collectively, the “Frozen Assets™):
] a. Bank of America account number xxxx5342, held in the name
| of Settling Individual Defandant; excluding the sum of $5,000;
| b.  Bank of America account numbe; xxxx8038, held in the name
|! of Settling Individual Defendant:
‘ c. The net proceeds of Merrill Lynch accoufi-umber xxxx8331,
| held in the name of Settling Individual Defendant, after payment of
| the loan against the account;
d. Merrill Lynch account number xxxx33 67, held in the'riaime of
Settling Individual Defendant;
€. Bank of America account number xxxx5115 in the name of
: Tatto, Inc.;
f. Bank of America account number xxxx4049 in the name of

Tatto, Inc.;

g. Bank of America account number xxxx3667 in the name of
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h. Bank of America account number xxxx4859 m the name of
Tatto, Inc.;
1. Bank of America account number xxxx1738 in the name of
Tatto, Inc.;
] Bank of America account number xxxx8491 in the name of
Tatto, Inc.
k. Rank of America account number xxxx4723 in the name of Be
ureat Labs, LLC;
I Cank of America account number xxxx3459 in the name of
Kively.copi; LLC:
m.  Bank of Ainerica account number xxxx4827 in the name of
Hexum.com, LLLC: and
n. BRank of America account number xxxx0617 in the name of Be
Great Partners Fund 11, LLC:
2. The surrender value of the Mass-Mutual life insurance policies in the
name of Settling Individual Defendant, endi ag in policy numbers xxxx8104
and xxxx9817.
3. To effect the surrender of the Frozen Assets, ithe Court directs that the
entities holding the funds or their successors shall, immediaiely upon
receiving notice of this Order, remit the funds to the Commiscion Y
certified check(s) or other guaranteed funds payable to the Federal Trade
Commission. Financial Management Office, or by wire transfer in

accordance with directions provided by counsel for the Commission. To the

extent any identified third party cannot comply with this Subsection without

the assistance of Settling Defendants, such party must, within three (3)
business days of receiving this Order, notify such Defendant(s) and counsel
for the Commission of its inability to comply. Such notification shall

specify the actions by such Defendant(s) that are necessary to comply with

P03
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1 this Order. Settling Defendants shall immediately complete any action
2 necessary to facilitate the identified third party’s ability to timely comply
3 with this Subsection, and the failure of such Defendant(s) to complete such
4 action within ten (10) days shall be deemed a violation of the Order and
5 interest at the rate prescribed in 28 U.S.C. § 1961 shall immediately begin to
6 accrue,
7 ) C. Aspartial satisfaction of the Judgment set forth in Subparagraph A, Settling
8 | Individual D3findant shall transfer possession of the following real properties
9 || (collectively the “Rial Properties”) to the Liquidator Receiver (“Liquidator”),
10 || identified below:
1 L. Within sixty days of the date of entry of this Order, 6600 Colgate
12 Avenue, Los Angeles, CA4
13 2. Within thirly days of thz date of entry of this Order, 200 North
14 Dearborn 3201, Chicago, IL;
15 3. Within thirty days of the date of éniry of this Order, 200 North
16 Dearborn 3202, Chicago, IL:
17 4. Within sixty days of the date of entry of this Order, 9508 Gloaming
18 Drive, Beverly Hills, CA; and
19§ 3. Within thirty days of the date of entry of this Order, 327 East 25" St.
20 #1 West, Chicago, 1.
21D, Within thirty days of the date of entry of this Order, as partial satisfaction of
22 | the judgment set forth in Subsection IV A, Settling Individual Defendant shail
23 I transfer possession of the following personal property (collectively the “Personal
24 Properties”) to the Liquidator:
25 1. Miao Partners, LLC and all of its holdings, including but not limited
26 ! to:
27 a. Its interest in Skinny Bikini Swimwear, LLC;
28
6
|
!
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b. Its intevest in Bloc Priya Avatar I, LLC;
C. Its interest in Bloc DT 1, LLC;
2 2013 Mercedes G63 SUV:
3 2014 Range Rover HSE SUV:
4. 2011 Audi R8 Sedan;
5 2009 Bentley GT Sedan;
6 The following jewelry items identified in Attachment 4 to Settling
Individiral Defendant’s sworn financial statement, dated 1/20/14:
Vian's Patek Philippe Watches (3);
Women’s Tiffany Watch:
Man’s 175" Anniversary Tiffany / Patek Phillip Watch;

Tiffany 10 Carat Yellow Diamond Ring;

o

o o

Tiffany 8 Carat White Diamond Ring;
Tiffany 6 Carat Totai"Weight Earrings;
Tiffany Bracelet;
Tiffany Necklace: and
1. Tiffany Diamond Bracelet.
Provided that, in Tieu of turning over the 2013 Mercedes G63 SUV, the 2014
Range Rover HSE SUV, or the 2011 Audi R8 Sedan to the Liquidator, Settling

Individual Defendant may surrender any or all of the vehicles to the scearad

= ga e oo

' creditor for such vehicle’s financing. Any proceeds from such surrender shall be

paid immediately to the Liquidator.

E.  Prior to transferring possession of the Real Properties and the Personal

i Properties (collectively the “Properties™) to the Liquidator, Settling Individual

Defendant shall: manage and maintain the Properties, including any structures,

fixtures, and appurtenances thereto, in good working order and in the same

“condition as of Janvary 20, 2014, which is the date Settling Individual Defendant
28 |
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signed his sworn financial statement, and shall take no action to diminish their
value; remain current on all amounts due and payable on the Properties, including
but not linited to tax, msurance, homeowner’s assessments, reasonable and
necessary maintenance, and similar fees: cause existing insurance coverage for the
properties to remain in force until the transfer of possession.

F. Settling Individual Defendant shall cooperate fully with the Liquidator and
take such-vther steps as the Liquidator may require to transfer to the Liquidator

| possession e the Properties and to assist in final liquidation of the Properties,

including executing’any documents, procuring the signatures of any person or

| entity under his control providing access to the Properties, providing any

| necessary information, and tuining over the Properties, Except as set forth in
“Subsection IV.E of this Order, the costs and cxpenses of transferring the Properties
shall be paid by the Liquidatorship:

G.  Upon completion of all obligations under Subsections IV B through IV F,
above, including all payments and asset tranisférs the remainder of the judgment is

} suspended, subject to Subsections IV.H, IV.I, and IV.], below.

i H. The Commission’s agreement to partial suspenczion-of the judgment is
expressly premised upon the truthfulness, aceuracy, and conipleteness of Settling
' Defendants’ sworn fina ncial statements and related documents (collectively,

“Financial Representations™ submitted to the Commission, namely:

i 1. the Financial Statement of Lin Miao signed on January 20, 2514,

including the attachments;

; 2. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Tatto, Inc., signed by

Settling Individual Defendant, as Chief Executive Officer, on January 20,

2014, including the attachmente:

| 3. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Shaboom Media,
LLC, signed by Settling Individial Defendant, as Member, on April 10,

2014, including the attachments;

P06
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1 4. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Bune, LLC, signed
2 by Settling Individual Defendant, as Member, on February 18, 2014,
3 including the attachments;
4 5. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Mobile Media
5 Products, LLC, signed by Settling Individual Defendant, as Manager, on
6 December 13, 2013, including the attachments;
7 6. the Financia! Statement of Corporate Defendant Chairman Ventures,
8 [[ LLC, qaigned by Settling Individual Detendant, as Manager, on December
9 | 13, 2013, ictading the attachments;
10 | 7. the Financia! Statement of Cornorate Defendant Galactic Media, LLC,
11 ' signed by Settling individual Defendant, as Manager, on December 13,
12 | 2013, including the attachuments:
13 8. the Financia! Statement of Corporate Defendant Virtus Media, LLC,
14 | signed by Seitling Individual Detendant, as Manager, on December 13,
15 ] 2013, including the attachments:
16 'l 9. the Declaration of Kelly Mi Li dated March 3,2014;
17 ; 10.  the Declaration of Lin Miao dated Februa wry 26, 2014; and
18 L1. the Declaration of Lin Miao dated March 12,2514,
19 ! I The suspension of the judgment will be lifted as to any Seitling Defendant if,
20§  upon motion by the Commission, the Court finds that such Settling Deipadant

21 [ failed to disclose any material zsset, materially misstated the value of an ydsset, or
22| ' made any other material misstatement or omission in the financial representaitons
23 [identified above.

24 , I Ifthe suspension of the judgment is lifted, the judgment becomes

25 ; immediately due as to that Settiing Defendant in the amount specified in

26 |, i Subsection IV.A. above, (which the parties stipulate only for purposes of this

27 Sectlon IV represents the consumer injury alleged in the Complaint), less any

28 | i payment previously made pursuant to this Section IV, plus interest computed from

B 8 it e T8 S5 e £ i ot A A Pt ettt AN im0 B bt b e - R
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the date of entry of this Order,
V. APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF LIQUIDATOR RECEIVER
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT Thomas W. McNamara, the

| Permanent Receiver in this matter, is appointed as Liquidator, with all the rights

|  and powers of an equity receiver, over the Properties listed in Subsections IV.C
and IV D,

I A, Asspon as reasonably possible, the Liguidator shall, at reasonable

cost and in 2’commercially reasonable fashion, liquidate the Properties. Counsel
for the Commissiopshall anprove the “inal sale price of each of the Properties.

B.  Upon Settling Individual Defendant’s transfer of possession, the Liquidator
shall assume responsibility far management and maintenance of the Properties,
including but not limited to making disbursements for operating expenses as may
be appropriate, undertaking repairs. proguring appropriate insurance or modifying
existing insurance, makirg payment foralamounts due and payable on the
Properties, including but not limited to taxes,insurance, homeowner’s assessments,
reasonable and necessary maintenance, and simijar fGes, and making payments for
and taking any other actions necessary to efficiently manage the Properties and to
maintain their value.

C.  The Liquidator shall have all necessary powers to manage and maintain the
Properties, including without limitation the following powers and responsibilities:

1. To take possession of the Properties;

2. Toemploy such counsel, real estate agents, auctioneers, appraisers,
accountants, contractors, other professionals, and other such persons
as may be necessary in order to carry out his dutics as Liquidator and
to preserve, maintain, and protect the Properties;

3. Todetermine or abrogate. in the Liquidator’s sole sound business

discretion, any and all agreements, contracts, understandings or

commitments entered into by Settling Individual Defendant with

1¢
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respect to the Properties to the extent permitted by law;

4. Toopen new accounts with, or negotiate, compromise or otherwise
modify Settling Individual Defendant’s existing obligations to third
partics, including utility companies, secured creditors, other service
providers or suppliers of goods and services related to the Properties,
and to otherwise enter into such agreements, contracts, or
understandings with such third parties as are necessary to maintain,
orzserve, and protect the Properties;

5. Toeper new baak accounts with respect to the Liquidator’s
management and operation of the Properties; and

6.  Torent the Rea'Propertics to third parties or Settling Individual

Defendant, until tlie Real Properties are sold.

D. The Liquidator shall keep a tic and accurate account of any and all
receipts and expenditures and petiodicatly file with the Court a Liquidatorship
Report under oath, accuratzly identifying all'sdch revenues received and
expenditures made, including adequately detailed information concerning income,
expenses, payables and receivables. These periodic filings shall be served by the
Liquidator on the Commission and Settling Individual Defedant’s counsel.

E.  Upon liquidating the jewelry listed in Subsection IV.D.6, the Liquidator
shall pay off the Tiffany Co. loan owed by Settling Individual Defendznt-on the
Jewelry listed in Subsection [V.D.6.

F. Any and all sums collected by the Liquidator over and above those
necessary to manage and maintain the Properties or those necessary to make
payments authorized by this Order shall be paid to the Commission.

G.  The Liquidator 1s entitled to reasonable compensation for the performance of
duties pursuant to this Order and for the cost of actual out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by him. The Liquidator’s compensation and the compensation of any

persons hired by him are to be paid solety from the proceeds of the sale of the
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Properties, and such payments shall have priority over all other distributions except
for any transfer fees, recording fees, or other payments owed through the transfer
of the Properties at the time of their sale. The Liquidator shall file with the Court
and serve on the Commission and Settling Individual Defendant periodic requests
for the payment of such reasonable compensation. The Liquidator shall not
increase the fees or rates used as the bases for such fee applications without prior
approval =i the Court.
H.  The Liquidator shall file his final application for fees, complete liquidation,
and terminate hisservice within 12 menths of the execution of this Order unless
good cause is showi to,2xtend beyond 12 months.
L Upon the final transferot all funds to the Commission pursuant to this
Section, the duties of the Liquidator shall terminate.
J. The powers and duties of the‘tiquidator under this Order are in addition to,
and not in lieu of, his powers and duties.as the Court-appointed Receiver in this
matter. Nothing in Subsections IV or V of this Order shall be construed to, nor
does, limit the powers and duties of Receiver as éef forth in the prior Orders of this
Court in this litigation. which powers and duties shall'continue until the
termination of the entire Receivership in this litigation. Furtlicr, nothing in this
Order limits the obligations of any Defendant or third party to cooperate with the
Receiver as set forth in the Court's prior Orders until termination of the entire
Receivership.
VL. ADDITIONAL MONETARY PROVISIONS

ITIS FLUURTHER ORDERED that:
A.  Settling Defendants relinquish dominion and all legal and equitable right,

title, and interest in all assets transferred pursuant to this Order and may not seek

the return of anv assets.

| B.  The facts alleged in the C omplaimnt will be taken as true, without further

proof, in any suhsequent civil litigation by or on behalf of the Commission,

e B e e bbb bammmbbt s e e mivicns e beer st
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including in a proceeding to enforce its rights to any payment or monetary
Judgment pursuant to this Order, such as a nondischargeability complaint in any
bankruptcy case.

! C.  The facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements necessary to sustain
an action by the Commission pursuant to Section 523(a)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy
Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(2)(A), and this Order will have collateral estoppel effect
for such nurposes.

D.  Settling Defendants acknowledge that their Taxpayer Identification Numbers
(Social Security Nuinbers or Employer Identification Numbers), which Settling
Defendants previously submitted to the Commission, may be used for collecting

| and reporting on eny delinquent amount arising out of this Order, in accordance
with 31 U.S.C. § 7701.

E.  All money paid to the Commission pursuant to this Order may be deposited
into a fund administered hy the Commtssion or its designee to be used for
equitable relief, including consumer redress and any attendant expenses for the
administration of any redress furd. If4 represeniaiive of the Commission decides
that direct redress to consumers is wheily or partially tmpracticable or money
remains after redress is completed, the Commission may appiy any remaining
money for such other equitable relief (including consumer inforthation remedies)
as it determines to be reasonably related o Defendants’ practices alleged in the
Complaint. Any money not used for such equitable relief is to be deposiiedto the

U.S. Treasury as disgorgement. Settling Defendants have no right to challenge any

-actions the Commission or its representatives may take pursuant to this Subsection.
ijVII. MODIFICATION OF ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Preliminary Injunction’s freeze of
Settling Defendants™ assets shall remain in effect until the assets have been
transferred in accordance with Subsections IV.B,IV.C,and IV.D. Provided,

'however, that the assel freeze may be lifted as to the Settling Defendants to the

AR i i AR e s s a i e < 1 - P
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extent necessary to comply with the transfer and turnover requirements of
Subsections 1V.C and 1V.D. Upon completion of the transfer and turnover
requirements of Section 1V, the asset fieeze is dissolved.
VII.  CUSTOMER INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’
officers.agents. servants, emiployees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active
concert o participation with any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order,

. whether actuig/directly or indirectly are permanently restrained and enjoined from

00 N N L B W N —

directly or indirezily:

o

A.  Failing to atovide-sufficient customer information to enable the Commission

11 “ to efficiently administar Consumer redress. If a representative of the Commission
12 lf requests in writing any inforimation related to redress, Settling Defendants must
13 | provide it, in the form prescrihed by the Commission, within 14 days,

14 | B.  Disclosing, using, or benefitting from customer information, including the
15 jname, address, telephone number, email address, social security number, other
16 1 identifying information, or anv data tha: enables acesss to a customer’s account
17 | (including a credit card, bank account, tzlephone company-account, or other

18 1 financial account). that any Defendant obtained prior to enitry of this Order in

19 ;
20

21 |‘ custody, or control within 30 days after receipt of written direction to dosofrom a

connection with the placemert of charges on consumers’ phone bulls; and

C.  Failing to destroy such customer information in all forms in their nossession,

22! representative of the Commission.

23 1 Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and
24 ' may be disclosed, to the extent requesied by a government agency or required by

25 1 law, regulation, or court order

26 | IX. COOPERATION

27§ ITIS FURTHER OP.BERED that Settling Defendants must fully cooperate

28 ¢ with representativ=s of the Commission in this case and in any investigation related
!

| "
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12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

| agents to appear for interviews, discovery, hearings, trials, and any other
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to or associated with the transactions or the occurrences that are the subject of the
Complaint. Settling Defendants must provide truthful and complete information,
evidence, and testimony. Settling Individual Defendant must appear and Settling

Corporate Defendants must cause their officers, employees, representatives, or

proceedings that a Commission representative may reasonably request upon 5 days
written neiice, or other reasonable notice, at such places and times as a
Commission representative may designate, without the service of a subpoena.
X. CONTINVATION OF RECEIVERSHIP

ITIS FURTHERAORDERED that Thomas W. McNamara shall continue as
permanent receiver over the Settling Comporate Defendants with full powers of a
“permanent receiver, including b not limited to those powers set forth in the
Preliminary Injunction, and includisig full liquidation powers. The Receiver is
directed to wind down the Settling Corperate Defendants and liquidate, for fair
market value, any assets of the Settling Corfieate Defendants that the Receiver
obtained pursuant to the Prefs 'minary Injunction as/well as any other assets of the
receivership. The Receiver must complete all remain g actions in regard to the
Receivership over the Settling Corporate Defendants and terii ‘nate the
receivership over them within 180 days after entry of this Order. Provided,
however, that any party or the Receiver may request that the Court extnd that
Receiver’s term for good cause  Upon termination of the receivership, ansd final
payment to the Receiver of all approved fees, costs, and expenses, the Recerver
| shall turn over to the FTC or its desi goered agent all remaining assets in the
receivership estate,
XI. ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

ITIS FURTHER ORIIERED thai Settling Defendants obtain
-acknowledgmesnts of receipt of this Order as follows:

A.  Each Settling Defenaart, wiihin 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to
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the Commission an acknow!d gment of receipt of this Order sworn under penalty
of perjury.

B.  For 5 years after entry of this Order, Settling Individual Defendant, for any
 business that such Defendant, individually or collectively with any other
Defendants, is the majority owner or controls directly or indirectly, and each
Settling Corporate Defendant must deliver a copy of this Order to: (1) all

principals; officers, directors, and 1LC managers and members; (2) all employees,

agents, and repuesentatives who participate in billing charges to consumers; and (3)
any business entity tesulting from any change in structure as set forth in the
' Sectton titled Combliapee Reporting. Delivery must occur within 7 days of entry
.‘ of this Order for current persannel. For all others, delivery must occur before they
| assume their responsihilities.
1 C.  From each individual or et to which a Settling Defendant delivered a
 copy of this Order, that Settling Defendent must obtain, within 30 days, a signed
and dated acknowledgment of receipt of this Grder.
XlI. COMPLIANCE REPORTING

[T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants make timely

submissions to the Commission:

' A. One year after entry of this Order. each Settling Defendant must submit a

i -
! compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury:

L. Each Settling Defendant must: (a) identify the primary physical,
postal, e2nd email eddress and telephone number, as designated points of
contact which representatives of the Commission may use to communicate

with Settiing Defendani: (b) identify all of that Settling Defendant’s

businesscs by all of their names, telephone numbers, and physical, postal,
email, and Tnternct add esses; (¢} describe the activities of each business,
including the goods and services offered, the means of advertising,

marketing. and sales, and the involvement of any other Defendant (which

A o i it e A St b it Tt AR i deh e PR
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Settling Individual Defendant must describe if he knows or should know due
to his own invelvement); (d) describe in detail whether and how that Settling
Defendant is in compliance with cach Section of this Order; and (e) provide
a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order,
unless previously submitted to the Commission.

2. Additionally, Seitling Individual Defendant must: (a) identify all
telsphone numbers and all physical, nostal, email and Internet addresses,
including all residences: (b) identify all business activities, including any
business tof #vhich ke performs services whether as an employee or
otherwise and any-entity in which he has any ownership interest; and (c)
describe ' detail s isvolvemet in each such business, including title, role,
responsibilities, participation, autherity, control, and any ownership.

For 15 years after entey of this Order, each Settling Defendant must submit a

compliance notice, sworn under penalty ¥ perjury, within 14 days of any change

in the following:

1. Each Sattling Defendant must report sny change in: (a) any
designated point of contact; or (3) the structure of 20y Settling Corporate
Defendant or anv eniity that Sett'ing Defendant has 211v ownership interest
in or confrols directlv or indirectlv {hat may affect compliarice obligations
arising under this Orde, including: creation, merger, sale, ordiszolution of
the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages tn any ucis or
practices subject to this Order.

2. Additionaily, Settling Individual Defendant must report any change
in: (a) name, including aliases or fictitious name, or residence address; or
(b} title or role in any business activity, including any business for which he
performs servizes whether as an emplovee or otherwise and any entity in
which he has any ownership interest, and identify the name, physical

address, and any Interret address of the business or entity.




O G0 1 N U R W R e

I\)I\)I\JNI\JI\J[\.}’—‘--)-—-H—-._;_..._.._.,._.
gb)ﬁc\m.nww-aooooqc\m.hwm»—o

1420945078 Page: 22 of 28

Case 2:13-cv- GMJ}LQ E E{:L%‘tl }ﬁ IﬁiedCO%IQAF)PL 18 0f 20 Page I[]

% )d’j [}

C. Each Settling Defendant must submit to the Commission notice of the filing
of any bankruptcy petition, isolvency proceeding, or similar proceeding by or
against such Defendant within 14 days of'its filing.
'D. Any submission to the Commission required by this Order to be sworn under
penalty of perjury must be true and accurate and comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746,
' such as hy concluding: 1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
| United Staies of America that the foreg: oing 1s true and correct. Executed on:

" and supnlying the date. signatory’s full name, title (if applicable), and
signature.
E. Unless otherwisedirected by a Commission representative in writing, all
submissions to the Commission pursuant to this Order must be emailed to
' DEbrief@ftc.gov or sent by overight courier (not the U.S. Postal Service) to:
Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal
| Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580. The
| subject line must begin: FTC v, Tatto, Inc.. ‘erv
XIL RECORDKEEPING
[T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendaits must create certain

records for 15 years after entry of the Order, and retain each sizch record for 5

1 years. Specifically, each Settling Corporate Defendant and Settling Individual
'Defendant for any business that such Defendant, individually or coileciively with

‘ any other Defendants, is the majority owner or controls directly or indire¢tiy, must
; create and retan tne following records:

j A.  Accountirg records showing the revenues from all goods or services sold;

!\ B.  Personnel records showing, for cach person providing services, whether as

| an employee or otherwise, thet person’s: name; addresses; telephone numbers; job
; title or position; dates of service; and ¢f apniicable) the reason for termination;
'C. Records of all corswier complaints and refund requests, whether received
i | directly or indirectly, such as through a third party, and any response;

1
i

i
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D.  Allrecords necessary to demons:rate full compliance with each provision of
this Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and

E. Allrecords of any consumer’s authorization to be billed or charged for any

~of Settling Defendants’ goods or services.
KIV. COMPLIANCE MONITORING

[T IS FURTHER ORIERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Settling
Defendanis’ compliance with this Order. including the financial representations

upon whichpa:t of the ludgment was suspended and any failure to transfer any

| asscts as requirca by this Order:

A. Within 14 days ofveceipt of a written request from a representative of the

' Commlssmn each Setting Befendant roust: submit additional compliance reports
{ or other requested information] which must be sworn under penalty of perjury;

‘ tappear for depositions; and producé documents for i mspection and copying. The

l Commission s also authorized to obtain-dis scovery, without further leave of court,
J using any of the procedures prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30
3 (including telephenic deposit 1ons), 31, 33, 34, 36,45, and 69.

'B. For matters concerning this Order. the Commissior is authorized to
-communicate directly with each Settling Defendant, Settiing Defendants must

]! permit representatives of the Commission to interview any employee or other

| person affiliated with any Defendant who has agreed to such an interview. The
. person interviewed may have counsel present,

j| C.  The Commission may use all other lawful means, including posing, tiirough
1 its representatives as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals or entities, to

Settling Defendants or any individual or entity affiliated with Settling Defendants,
{

without the necessity of identification or prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits

the Commissior’s lawful use of compuisory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20
. Ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §3 49, 57b-1
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XV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this
matter for purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order.
|
SO ORDERED this 11" day of June, 2014

b

A £y H
Ao e Sa B
A e iR

DALE 5. FISCHER
UNITLD STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

20
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I hereby attestand certity on 06-25-24.
that the foregoing document is a full, true
and correct copy of the original on file in
my office, and in my legal custody,

CLERK U.S. DISTRICT COURT
ISTRICT ‘ORNIA

DEP K
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STATEMENT BY GRANTOR AND GRANTEE

The grantor or his agent affirms that, to the best of his knowledge, the name of the grantee shown on
the deed or assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust is either a natural person, an Mlinois

corporation or foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in
Dlinois, a partnership authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in Iltinois, or

other entity recognized as a person and authorized to do business or acquire title to real estate under the
laws of the State of THinois.

Y B .
pua__Juby 22 04 .
* Signature: 4‘/

Grantor or Agent

Subscribed and sworn to before me

By the said PAAY ! CI\CI;M m X

This 22000, dsly jf s, 20 &) sommoouonn B
] i ] LOS ANGEL ES COUNTY

Notary Public | _{_A_- My o i Do 2017

The grantee or his agent affirms and verifies that the_name of the grantee shown on the deed or
assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust is either a naral person, an Illinois corporation or
foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquire’ 2a¢ hold title to real estate in linois, a
partnership authotized to do business or acquire and hold titie te real estate in Wlinois or other entity

recognized s a person and authorized (o do businesg or acquire utle to real estate under the laws of the
State of Llinois.

Datc_,_m,l_.} 22 .20 1Y

Signature:

e T

or Agers

Subscribed and swom to before me
By the said V_f\\u_\) W20
This}lm:bdj[v f 7D 5 ,20\Y

oy
Notary Public A

-840

Note: Any person who knowingly submits a false statement concerning the identity of a Grantee shall

be guilty of a Class C misdemeanor for the first offense and of a Class A misdemeanor for subsequent
offenses.

DMWEST #10952991 v1
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STATEMENT BY GRANTOR AND GRANTEE

The grantor or his agent affirms that, to the best of his knowledge, the name of the grantee shown on
the deed or assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust 18 either a natural person, an Hlinois

corporation or foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in
Iinots, a partnership authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in linois, or

other entity recognized as u person and authorized to do business or acquire title to real estate under the
laws of the Stae of Nlinois.

Dated e , 20
Signature:
Grantor or Agent
Subscribed and sworn to before mie
By the said
This . day of (20
Notary Public

The grantee or his agent affirms and verifies that the name of the grantee shown on the deed or
assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust is ¢ither a natural person, an Illinois corporation or
foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquie-and hold title 1o real estate in Ulinois, a
partnership authotized to do business or acquire and hold atie to real estate in Illinois or other entity

recognized as a person and authorized (o do business or acquirsltle to real estate under the laws of the
State of Minois,

Date ___ U\ 'H . Z.O_H_

I \

il
Signature: o o
Grantee ava gen%
Subscribed and swom to before me
By the said ,
This .., dayof .20 QEP/{HZ{GVIP.A
Notary Public

Note: Any person who knowingly submits a false statement concerning the identity of a Grantee shall

be guilty of 4 Class C misdemeunor for the first offense and of a Class A misdemeanor for subsequent
offenses.

DMWEST #10952991 v1
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CALIFORNIA ALL PURPOSEACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of California

Countyof _LOS ANGELES

On TULT 29, 2014 petore me, HonlcA BEATRIZ PATANIAN . NOTREY PUBLI ¢

Date Here Insert Name and Titls of the Ofiucer

personally appeared __ T AMIE  CURRY

Nameis) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the same in his/heritheir authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature

OPTIONAL --

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valualic to persons relying on the document
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this forr') to onother document.

Place Notary Seal Above

~ Signature of Notary Public

Description of Attached Document
Title or Type of Document: _ STATEHMENT BY granTDR AN GRANTEE
Document Date: __ JULY 24 , 20 14 Number of Pages: 2

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer's Name; Signer's Name:
Individual i ] Individual
Corporate Officer — Title(s): U Corporate Officer — Title(s):

O

]

Li Partner —[J Limited [] General O Partner — LI Limited L1 General
0 Attorney in Fact OF SIGNER LI Attorney in Fact OF SIGNER

O Top of thumb here Top of thumb here

1 Trustee _1 Trustee
(] Guardian or Conservator LI Guardian or Gonservator
O Other: || Other:
Signer Is Representing: Signer |s Representing:
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